
Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

1 

 

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Informal Session in the 
Meeting Chamber Conference Room CH-14 of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center 
located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 5:19 p.m. and in Formal Session in 
the Meeting Chamber of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Government Center at 6:04 p.m. on Tuesday, 
April 15, 2025. 
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman 

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin, 
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  None 
 
 ____________________ 
 
     -INFORMAL SESSION- 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Jerrell, after which the matters below were addressed. 
 
 
REMOVAL OF ITEMS FROM CONSENT 
 
The Board identified item(s) to be removed from Consent and voted upon separately. The items 
identified were items: 
 
25-0202 Commissioner Leake 
25-0205 Commissioner Leake 
25-0207 Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell 
25-0210 Commissioner Leake 
 
 
STAFF BRIEFINGS 
 
25-0241 APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL PROCESS 
 

The Board received information to discuss the advisory board appointment and removal process. 

 

Background: A request was made by the Board Chair to discuss a removal process where the Board 
has made an appointment to a committee or a board. 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

2 

 

County Attorney Wade provided guidance for appointment and removal. 

The Board’s Appointment Policy, Section 6, authorizes the Board to remove any member for any 
reason, or no reason, upon a motion made by a particular member of the Board that sustained a 
majority number of votes for the removal. 

The Board did not need to craft a separate or new process to handle the matter 

He suggested the Board follow the current process for items to be added to the agenda because a 
vote needed to be taken by the Board to remove, or not, someone who was requested by a 
Commissioner to be removed from a committee or board.  

He said for a matter to appear on the agenda, any Board member would need two sponsors to 
bring the matter forth for consideration.  He suggested that item to be added under Commissioner 
Reports and Requests. 

He said because the individual up for consideration of removal may be removed without 
justification, and to maintain due process, he suggested the following: 

• The Commissioner who was seeking sponsorship and requesting the Board to consider the 
removal of the committee or board member to reach out to them and inform them of their 
opportunity to be heard during the meeting in which the item would appear on the agenda. 

• The individual in consideration for removal be informed they and whoever they chose to 
bring with them could address the Board when the matter was called to speak and provide 
their side.  

• The Individual bringing the matter forth be given prompt notice that the matter will appear 
on the agenda for consideration. 

• If the individual did not appear, it could make it easier for the Board’s decision. 

• Following the opportunity for the individual in question to provide their position in the 
situation, the Board could then vote whether to remove the individual. 

• The policy spoke separately with regards to removal due to attendance  

Comments 

Commissioner Powell asked about the difference between the control the Board had with a State 
formed board versus a County board. County Attorney Wade said if the position to which the 
appointment had been made by legislation, they would have to follow that policy and would not 
have the latitude to remove the individual but because the board in question was not such, the 
removal would be well within the Boards authority. 

Commissioner Powell said there were only two people who requested the removal of the individual 
in question and was thankful for their diligence regarding due process.  

Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if other individuals excluding the individual in consideration 
for removal would be permitted to publicly express their opinions on the matter. County Attorney 
Wade said yes, during the public appearance portion of the meeting.   

Commissioner Dunlap said he wanted to clarify that a citizen could not request the person be 
removed as only a member of the Board of County Commissioners could make those decisions and 
any person could be accused of similar things so, until there was enough legitimate concern for the 
Board to consider removal, they should leave it be.  



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

3 

 

Commissioner Griffin said there wasn’t a formula for due process beyond giving them three 
minutes to speak on the matter because it was within their purview as to what the Board decided 
to do with that seat or person. County Attorney Wade said if a Commissioner obtained sponsors to 
add the item to the agenda at the request for a removal, depending on the issue, three minutes may 
have not been sufficient and so the Board would have to take action to amend the policy at that 
hearing to allow an extension of time, so they fully heard those who were present. 

Commissioner Altman said she had not engaged with the constituent yet but, if she were to, she 
would request clarification regarding the alleged wrongdoing because, although she read 24 
paragraphs on the matter, she failed to find what it was.  

Commissioner Leake said she did not believe she received the information.  

Chair Jerrell said he wanted to ensure the Board understood the process and they were all on the 
same page.  

Commissioner Meier asked how long their term was and how long they’d been in it. Clerk to the 
Board Kristine Smith said it was an unexpired term that was set to end September 2026. 

Commissioner Leake asked how long the term was. Clerk to the Board Smith said four years.  

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell requested clarification of information provided by County 
Attorney Wade with regards to the agenda process which was provided by County Attorney.  

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if it had to be public. County Attorney Wade said yes.  

Commissioner Meier asked if there was a hearing and people spoke toward it, could the person in 
question also speak to it. County Attorney Wade said yes and that was his suggestion.  

Chair Jerrell said the purpose of their discussion was to ensure they were all on the same page 
because there was confusion and misinformation. He said it did not seem like anyone from the 
Board would make a motion to have that person removed so when he followed up with additional 
emails, he would let them know that there was no motion to do so.  

Commissioner Powell said if someone was unhappy, they could come and speak during public 
appearance.  

Commissioner Dunlap said the Board could not respond publicly to the woman who would speak at 
the Public Appearance portion of their meeting as they would be following their normal process.   

Commissioner Powell requested that if they needed to remove a person, the Board should all be 
made aware of it before putting it on the agenda.  

Mollie James, Executive Director of Wayfinders Youth Empowerment in Charlotte, introduced 
Wayfinders and its offerings to the Board. She said students entered the program in 4th grade and 
stayed through 12th grade and were paired with a long-term mentor. She said the students were 
attending the BOCC meeting to learn about local government and introduced the children to the 
Board.   

 
 
CLOSED SESSION - None 
 
The Board then proceeded to the Meeting Chamber for the remainder of the meeting. 
  
 

    -FORMAL SESSION- 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

4 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Jerrell called this portion of the meeting to order, which was followed by introductions, 
invocation by Commissioner Altman, and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag; after which, the 
matters below were addressed. 
 
AWARDS/RECOGNITION  
 
25-0177 PROCLAMATION – DECLARING APRIL 2025 AS NC REENTRY MONTH 
                          (COMMISSIONER MEIER) 
 
 Background:  The State of North Carolina Has declared April 2025 as NC Reentry Month. All citizens 
Are encouraged to join in supporting persons and families living with criminal histories and those 
who work to ensure their transition back into the community is successful.   
 
The proclamation was sponsored by Commissioner Meier and co-sponsored by Chair Jerrell and 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell. 
 
The proclamation was read by Commissioner Meier. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Meier, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to adopt a Proclamation declaring April 2025 as NC Reentry Month in Mecklenburg County. 
 
Latashia Young, Criminal Justice Program Manager for Reentry Services, received the proclamation 
and gave remarks. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

5 

 

 
 
 
25-0234 PROCLAMATION – NATIONAL COUNTY GOVERNMENT MONTH (CHAIR JERRELL) 
 
Background:  National County Government Month (NCGM), held each April, is an annual celebration 
of county government. Since 1991, the National Association of Counties (NACo) has encouraged 
counties to actively promote county roles and responsibilities in serving residents.  
 
Chair Mark Jerrell read the proclamation.   
 
Motion was made by Chair Jerrell, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously carried, to 
adopt a Proclamation declaring April 2025 as County Government Month in Mecklenburg County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

6 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Dunlap suggested that a copy of the proclamation be sent to the National 
Association of Counties on behalf of Mecklenburg County. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram thanked everyone and the citizens for electing her.   
 
Commissioner Griffin said he always tried to educate people. He said there were 3069 counties in 
America, with Mecklenburg County being the 41st largest County. 
 
Commissioner Leake stated, as it related to those who worked for the County, that the work 
couldn’t be done without them.  She said County Manager Dena Diorio served them well 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

7 

 

PUBLIC ART MOMENT  
 
25-0158 PUBLIC ART MOMENT 
 
The Board received a presentation on the Mecklenburg County Public Art Collection. 
 
Background:   On January 5, 2021, the Board of County Commissioners approved the addition of 
an agenda topic to the second Regular meeting of the month entitled Public Art Moment. The 
item, with the help of the Arts & Science Council, will highlight a piece of public art - a different 
one each month. The purpose of this item is to raise public awareness and appreciation for the 
tax dollars that are spent on public art each year.  
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

8 

 

 
 
 
PUBLIC APPEARANCE 
 
 
25-0214 PUBLIC APPEARANCE 
 
The following persons appeared to speak during the Public Appearance portion of the agenda: 
 

1. Diana Pollard   Data on Hispanic Homeownership   
2. Judy Schindler   MLK and Holocaust Memorials in Marshall Park 
3. Xavier Torres de Janon Militarized Police Training Facility (Cop City) 
4. Kaya Allyn   Cop City 
5.  Sophie Sommer  Construction of a first responder training center on 

                          Educational property. 
6. Rafaella Vaca   Levine campus training facility. 
7. Mina Ezikpe   Levine campus training facility. 
8. Peri Salman   Cop City training facility being built at CPCC. 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

9 

 

9. Elise Redmond  Replacement of Mecklenburg County appointee on the       
                                              Lake Norman Marine Commission. 

10. Anjonet Austin  Drowning of her son, Keith Austin, on Lake Norman 2 years 
                                              ago – 4th of July, lake safety.  

 
 
APPOINTMENTS – NONE  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
 
25-0200 TEFRA HEARING NOVANT HEALTH 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Dunlap, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to open a TEFRA Public Hearing to receive public comments on the proposed financing by 
Novant Health. 
 
Background:  As more fully explained in the attached Resolution, Novant and other Benefiting 
Entities  (the "Borrower") has requested that the National Finance Authority (the "Authority") issue 
Revenue Bonds (Novant Health Energy Project), to be issued as qualified Section 501 (c)(3) bonds 
under Section 145 of the Code in one or more series, issuance, or advances (the “Bonds”), in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $855,000,000 for the following purpose: 

(1) The Bonds will finance and refinance facilities across the State of North Carolina and the 

State of South Carolina, including facilities located within the County. 

(2) Federal tax law requires that tax-exempt bonds issued to finance facilities for non-profit 

entities be approved by the elected legislative body of the governmental units that (1) 

control the issuer of the bonds and (2) have jurisdiction over the area in which the 

facility is located after holding a public hearing. 

Section 147(f) of the Code requires that any tax-exempt bonds issued by the Authority may only 

be issued following a public hearing with respect to the issuance. Hosting the public hearing and 

approving issuance of the bonds is ministerial and does not place any financial burden upon the 

governmental entity approving the resolution.  

Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to close the Public Hearing and adopt a Resolution entitled Resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina Approving the Issuance of Revenue Bonds 
of the National Finance Authority, a component unit of the business Finance Authority, a 
component unit of the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire, for Novant 
health Energy Projects, by the Public Finance Authority in an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed $855,000,000 for the purposes stated therein. 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

10 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

12 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

13 

 

 

 
 
Resolution recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #13. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

14 

 

 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
25-0220 JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL PROPOSED FY26 FUNDING 

ALLOCATION PLAN & ANNUAL REPORT – CJS 
  

The board received an annual report and a proposed FY26 allocation plan from JCPC. 
 
Background:  The Mecklenburg County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) will receive 
$2,051,713 in FY26 funding from the North Carolina Department of Public Safety. In turn, the JCPC 
makes recommendations for the distribution of the funds to community-based programs that 
address juvenile justice involvement. The JCPC is charged with reviewing the needs of juveniles 
within the community who are delinquent or at-risk of becoming court-involved, assessing local 
services needs, and presenting an annual service proposal to the BOCC  
 
Nicole Beverly, Chair of JCPC, gave the presentation.  
 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

15 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

16 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

17 

 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked how they knew where the most money should go and 
whether their reports showed this. Ms. Beverly said they were provided with a list of the County's 
needs, and that's what was focused on.  She said the organizations apply and based on the needs in 
the RFP, they decided how to allocate the money.   
 
Commissioner Powell asked to discuss how the money was spent on mediation and responsive 
circles, such as McCormick Cares.  Nicole Beverly said it was a new program that was funded for 
FY26.  She said the programs were related to responsive circles and programming outside of their 
schools, focusing on restorative justice. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

18 

 

Commissioner Dunlap said a few years ago the committee was in a disarray.   He said they couldn’t 
get enough people to come to a meeting to decide who would get the funding.  He said after Ms. 
Beverly agreed to accept the position as Chair, they then had orderly meetings and no longer met 
until 11 pm.  He said she brought order to the board and the board processes and had a committee 
that reviewed every request and tried to fund programs in different categories so that they were 
not funding programs that were doing the same things.      
 
Commissioner Dunlap commended Ms. Beverly’s leadership and thanked Sonya Harper, who was a 
critical part of that committee and its operation. He also thanked the committee and the people 
who voluntarily served on it for making recommendations to the whole body as to which programs 
should be funded and why. He said it was unanimously decided who they would fund and support 
and recommended to this body to allocate the funds.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap asked to be recused because he had participated in the funding decision-
making process.   
 
Motion was made by Chair Jerrell, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously carried (8-
0), to recuse Commissioner Dunlap from voting on the funding allocation. 
 
Commissioner Leake asked how many youth programs there were and their success rate. Ms. 
Beverly said there were 13 programs, and for FY26, there would be 12. She said the Council had 
served 794 youth and planned to finish with 1022 by the end of the fiscal year. She said those 
programs were scattered across the County, not just in one area. 
 
Chair Jerrell said he had a greater appreciation for her job and the job of the committee because 
there was a limited amount of funding, and yet the community was not lacking programming and 
non-profits.  He said most of them had done amazing work and a great job, but there wasn’t 
enough funding, and everyone wanted to tap the County or the State for funds.    
 
Commissioner Altman thanked them for their work.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap said based on the Board's rules, Ms. Beverly was ending her term as 
Chair.  He said that she had graciously agreed to work with the next chairperson. He said that 
five people turned down the opportunity to chair JCPC, He said that Ms. Beverly stated that 
Tom Barnett would be the Chair if appointed, and she would assist him. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and 
unanimously carried (8-0), to receive Annual Report of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council; 
adopt a grant project ordinance for FY26 Department of Public Safety  Division of Juvenile Justice 
Funds in the General Grants Fund (G001); recognize, receive, and appropriate up to $2,051,713 to 
the General Grants Fund (G001) within Criminal Justice Services and,  approve FY26 Funding 
allocation plan as recommended by the Mecklenburg County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council in 
the amount up to $2,051,713. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

19 

 

 

 
Grant Project Ordinance recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #14. 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

20 

 

 
Funding Plan recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #15. 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

21 

 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
25-0208 LATTA PLACE REIMAGINED 
 
The Board received as information a presentation on the design for Latta Place. 
 
Background:  Latta Place is being reimagined to tell the stories of all those who have inhabited this 
historic site within the Latta Nature Preserve.  
 
Dena Diorio, County Manager, spoke about the history of Latta Place over the last few years. 
 
Gina Ford, Founding Principal of Agency Landscape & Planning, and Malcolm Davis, Practice 
Leader/Senior Associate of Perkins & Will, gave the presentation. 
 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

22 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

23 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

24 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

25 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

26 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

27 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

28 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

29 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

30 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

31 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

32 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

33 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

34 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

35 

 

 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

36 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Griffin thanked them for their hard work and said that he was thoroughly impressed 
with the quality of their work, attention to detail, and efforts to visit other historical sites to gain 
insight. 
 
Commissioner Powell said this reflects many voices.  She said that the Board worked very closely 
with the County Manager, and from the beginning she was wholeheartedly committed to not 
making it a placeholder of the past. She said the one thing she was concerned about going forward 
was the amount of impervious in a nature preserve.   She said she wanted to make sure they 
worked closely with Park and Rec staff so that there would be the least impact, and the least 
amount of impervious. 
 
The Commissioners thanked them for their hard work and dedication. 
 
Commissioner Leake said this would bring economic growth to the area, change the area's present 
image, and add to the County and its contribution to that period of time.  She thanked them for 
revitalizing an area that would have soon been forgotten. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap thanked the staff for their heroic effort. He said he was excited about what 
was proposed for that site. He said the County took its effort seriously to make opportunities 
available for those who were disabled. He said he wanted to make sure County vehicles were on-
site so that people could truly explore it. 
 
Commissioner Altman said when a community handled something of such sensitivity and pain, the 
reverberations of which were 100% still here today in so many ways, there was work that still 
needed done.  She said that it was like a holy endeavor to do it justice with care, especially when 
telling the truth seemed to be under assault everywhere. She said it felt like a haven to ensure 
everyone was educated about what occurred and was a part of the combated legacy.  
 
Chair Jerrell thanked them for their hard work.  He thanked County Manager Diorio for her 
leadership.  He said that it was always interesting to see how you could have had a tough 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

37 

 

circumstance, but it then turned into something beautiful.   He thanked Dr. Johnson for all her hard 
work. 
 
 
25-0238 MECKLENBURG EMS AGENCY (MEDIC) – SYSTEM PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
 
The Board received as information a briefing from Medic to understand MEDIC’S current 
performance, resource needs, and Medic’s vision for the future as it evolves to best serve our 
community. MEDIC will also provide an update on the current status of Fire Department contracts.  
  
John Peterson, Executive Director, MEDIC gave the presentation. 
 
Background:  MEDIC continues to improve system performance after facing significant challenges 
over the past five years, including a devastating staffing shortage coupled with population growth 
and a resultant increase in 911 call volume. This presentation will highlight the performance work 
being done, improvements already made, along with the Agency’s FY ’26 budget priorities that will 
enable continued progress.   
 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

38 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

39 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

40 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

41 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

42 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

43 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

44 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

45 

 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Altman thanked the first responders and said the government had a first-order 
obligation to deliver emergency services. She said she wasn’t sure how they would get there as she 
heard a lot of disagreement, but was confident they would get there.  
 
Commissioner Altman asked whether the basic argument was that the County should not send 
money to the Towns because the Towns already had fire departments that didn’t need to be out on 
fire calls frequently and had the same skill set to do the initial emergency response. She asked if 
there wasn’t an extra cost to them because they already had these fire departments in place to 
provide this first level of response, and if a higher level of response was needed, then Medic, which 
was much smaller, could follow behind. 
 
County Manager Dena Diorio said municipal fire departments, not only in Mecklenburg County but 
across the country, had first responder responsibilities in addition to fighting fires.   She said that a 
large part of what they do, and the data showed that 64% of their calls were first responder calls, 
and the taxpayers in the city of Charlotte and the six towns were already paying taxes for that 
service. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked whether the Fire Department would be mostly underutilized if it only 
responded to fires. County Manager Diorio said yes.  
 
Commissioner Altman said Mecklenburg County was the only county in North Carolina providing 
subsidies to municipalities. County Manager Diorio said based on John Peterson's research, that 
was correct that Mecklenburg County was the only county in North Carolina providing subsidies to 
municipal fire departments. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked County Manager Diorio where the fire departments stood on this.  She 
said they felt the County should pay them to provide first responder services.   
 
Commissioner Meier asked John Peterson about a part of the presentation that stated that people 
felt the raw compliance and not the contract compliance.  John Peterson said the meaning of that 
was the true reflection of the responses in the community. He said that 81% of the time, raw time, 
the fire department was on time, which was the patients' feelings, but in their reports, the data 
showed 98% of the time, the fire department was on time due to the way the contract was set up in 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

46 

 

their reporting mechanism and with the exemptions that the fire department received, it reported 
98% compliant.  He said that it was hard to tell someone that there was a problem when the report 
showed 98% compliance.  
 
Commissioner Meier said she supported more ambulances and hoped that the Board would be 
able to assist with that. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap stated that it reminded him of the situation with Carolinas Healthcare. He 
said the County was paying Carolinas Healthcare $40 million a year to serve indigent patients.  He 
said Mecklenburg was the only county that paid Carolinas Healthcare for indigent patients, while 
Carolinas Healthcare provided healthcare for indigent patients in all the other counties.   He said 
Harry Jones was the manager then, and he hired Dan Bishop to take Carolinas Healthcare to court 
to get out of the contract. Commissioner Dunlap said the County won for the same reason that was 
presented tonight.  He said based on the information of the past, if this situation were to go to 
court, the County would probably prevail in that instance. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said with funds currently being paid for services provided by the fire 
departments, they were seeking increased funding. John Peterson said the Charlotte Fire 
Department was seeking to go from a $500,000 subsidy to a $1.8 million subsidy, and Huntersville’s 
Fire Department was seeking to go from a $106,000 subsidy to a $1.6 million subsidy. He said the 
percentages were a 256% increase for CFD and 1,400% increase for Huntersville, and that all the 
Towns desired to increase the subsidy. 
 
Commissioner Powell said that Davidson did not ask for an increase.  She said they wanted to 
remain the same.    She said she appreciated going over Raw Compliance vs. Contract Compliance 
because there were a lot of heartburn and frustrations.  She said people thought it was book 
cookery when they heard the Contract Compliance vs. what was truly happening.   She said that 
she appreciated more zones being added.  She said that looking at District 1, at the 68% and then 
down to the right of North Charlotte, and you look at that low number, it showed what was felt.  
She said, though it might not be in the recommendation yet, the North would not back down on 
dedicated ambulances in that area.  She said that the EMTs and paramedics felt the same as she 
had expressed.   She said the pain of not having the resources on time was felt.   
 
Commissioner Powell said there needed to be a way to decrease the medic hold time for the fire 
department.  John Peterson said one way would be to increase the medic fleet size and the number 
of personnel to meet those response times in those zones first and see the impact.  He said once 
that work was completed, they would look to see if there was still a problem where a dedicated unit 
would need to be considered, or if another option, such as a deployment center further north, was 
available. He said the priority was to finish the work they had already started.  He said it came 
down to dollars because an ambulance sitting idle and not running calls was not generating 
revenue.   
 
John Peterson said that the team did a deep dive into their response reconfiguration and looked at 
every response determinant.  He said there were 2200 response determinants that could happen.  
He said one of the things that was identified was an opportunity to reduce first responder-only 
responses significantly by about 32% county-wide. He said this was an opportunity to reduce the 
fire department's wait times.  He said, more importantly, there was Advanced Send Protocol, which 
was geared toward the police departments and how police departments could better communicate 
with Medic so that there was an understanding of what they were dealing with and what they 
needed.  He said the first thing to be done was to reduce the number of times that fire goes out 
without Medic.  He said the Advanced Send Protocol was tested in Cornelius and has had positive 
results.  He said it was a way for police have a better scripted way to provide the information to 
them to provide the proper response. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

47 

 

Commissioner Leake said the safety information needed to be provided to the community. John 
Peterson said that Public Relations professionals shared the message and teach CPR and public 
education classes.  He said there was so much work still to be done, not just in Mecklenburg County, 
but across the state and the country.  He said that public education on when the right time to call 
911 and how to take care of yourself so that you didn’t put yourself in that instance was important. 
 He said they understood that some people had no other option and may not be able to see a doctor 
on their own so the only thing they knew was to go to the emergency room, and they ended up 
being the backstop for healthcare for them. He said they would continue to do that and take care of 
them.  He said that this was a challenge nationwide, and it was a tremendous expense.   
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said the funding model seemed outdated and asked who 
assembled the districts and funding model and if there was a foundation.  Mr. Peterson said that in 
North Carolina, the counties were responsible for the provisions of EMS services.  He said that it 
was at the local level that it was designed, and it was designed where Medic was the ambulance 
service.  He said they were an exclusive EMS provider; there was no other ambulance provider, the 
hospital providers had some ambulances that they used for inter-campus transports, but Medic 
was the only 911 provider within the County.   He said that the system was created back in the 90s 
and formed Medic and Medic was a joint government agency and that he was a Medic employee. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if they received funding from foundations, state, or federal 
agencies.  Mr. Peterson said Medic was funded in two primary ways, one of which was about 75% of 
their revenue came from fees for service that were billed and collected from patients for the service 
provided, and the other 25% came in the form of a County subsidy.  He said that the County subsidy 
was discussed each year with Medic as a part of the budget process.  He said that they submit a 
complete budget to the County Manager, who then recommends Medic's budget to the Board. He 
said that those were the only two sources.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said was trying to understand the funding model.  She said in 
2018, people talked about the ambulance bills and had many complaints; however, you didn’t hear 
of that much anymore and wondered if that was due to the County subsidy.   Mr. Peterson said 
from his research that the County had no obligation to fund first responder services, nor did Medic, 
but right now, the money came through Medic.  He said that in speaking with the state office of 
EMS, no other counties had contracts for first responder services through their ambulance services. 
He said there was no requirement for a contract for Medic with the fire department.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked County Manager Dena Diorio to explain why 
Mecklenburg was paying subsidies to the Towns and Charlotte.  County Manager Diorio said the 
origin of the subsidy went back to the 1990s when this Medic structure was created.   She said as 
Mr. Peterson indicated, through much research and conversations with Joe Penner, though the 
exact origin was not 100% clear, that at that time there were mostly volunteer fire departments 
without any taxing authority, so the County was providing a subsidy to help support that because 
they had no mechanism to get funding on their own.  She said that since that time, the system 
changed significantly. She said the Towns and City fire departments had taxing authority and the 
wherewithal to fund their first responder services, which they did.  She said the citizens were 
already paying for that service, so there was no reason that the County should be providing any 
funding to any municipal fire department for first responder services. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said the function of government's first priority was the safety of its residents. 
 He asked the County Manager to share the MOU (Memorandum of Understanding) from 1997 
with the Board.  He asked John Peterson about whether the County was responsible for EMS 
services, and Mr. Peterson responded yes and said that was in the statute. Commissioner Griffin 
asked County Attorney Tyrone Wade to let him know where he could get that statute from so that 
he could put references to the conversation.   
    



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

48 

 

Commissioner Griffin said he wanted to get the documents to see how things were flowing.  He 
said that the population would be increasing by 500,000 by 2030, so it was important to get this 
right so that it could be consistent in terms of providing first-class services to all residents.  Mr. 
Peterson said the eight zones were how Medic looked at the responses. 
 
Commissioner Altman stated that she understood the need to change and grow and why the 
County Manager didn’t want to double-tax residents. She said she didn’t accept that it couldn’t be 
broken down by zip code.  She said it should be and that level of transparency was owed, especially 
when there was so much consternation. She said that she hoped a way would be made to provide 
this data by zip code.     
 
Commissioner Altman stated that she would like an explanation as to why Iredell and Cabarrus 
County had established bases where EMS operates, unlike Mecklenburg, and that Mecklenburg 
County should be able to do what they were doing.  She said that it was stated that there had been 
no adverse impact on clinical performance; however, she understood that the Towns had service-
related concerns and would like transparency.   
 
 John Peterson said regarding zip code data, he had a conversation with the Town managers, and 
he had committed to the group that there would be a discussion with his board chair, and he 
believed it could be part of the plan going forward as they continued to look at how they 
redesigned Medic and tracked reports and response times.  He said this would include the zones, 
exemptions, and discussion regarding zip code reporting.  He said if Medic was required to be 90% 
compliant in ten minutes and 59 seconds by zip code, many more ambulances and people would be 
needed to be successful.  He said Iredell and Cabarrus County both used a form of static 
deployment, and they had built specific EMS stations, or in combination with sharing fire stations, 
and that was not how Mecklenburg County was designed.  He said the County was designed back in 
the 90s as a Dynamic Deployment Model.  He said the Dynamic Deployment Model was a much 
more efficient and cost-effective way to do the service because they didn’t spend millions building 
stations for ambulances and didn't incur costs for static wait time for calls.  He said it also allows for 
scaling it up and down throughout the day, causing significant cost savings.  He said quality care in 
the north calls went through a full quality assurance review and was corrected as fast as possible. 
He said the clinical performance numbers showed no decline. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked what Mr. Peterson thought the fire department would say if they were 
there. John Peterson said the fire departments said they needed to be fully funded. He said they 
need to be fully funded to do the work that they provide. He said that they believe that because 
the County was charged with providing EMS services, it was also responsible for paying for first 
responder EMS services.   
 
Commissioner Meier asked if without funding, would they take a cut although they were already 
being paid.  Mr. Peterson said yes.   
 
Mr. Peterson said it they provided additional funding it would go to the General Fund. 
 
County Manager Diorio said they think it was a County responsibility and that the County should 
pay for it, but she disagreed. She said it was part of what they did. 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said just because someone felt a certain way did not make it true.  He said 
although they talked about data all the time, they could not listen to data in this case, just the facts. 
    
Commissioner Dunlap asked if mediation was a possibly, what would happen if there was an 
impasse and if first responder would have to respond regardless because of their duty of care.   
John Peterson said if mediation was needed, it would be a possibility, but it came down to whether 
the County would continue funding.  He said that if the County was not going to continue funding, 
the issue would be what would happen to Medic’s first responder agreements.   He said there were 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

49 

 

two Towns and one City that had already given notice to renegotiate.  He said it there was no 
funding attached to the contracts he didn’t know if those communities would still negotiate and 
sign the contracts with the County.  He said in that instance there may need to be some type of 
mediation.    He said if there was an impasse and they could not come to an agreement, the fire 
departments could still respond to EMS calls as first responders in Mecklenburg County.  He said 
the only difference was that without the contracts, Medic loses the ability to make them go.  He 
said the decision to respond to EMS calls for the fire department was up to the individual 
communities. He said they could choose to provide first responder services, but they were not 
required to do so. 
 
Commissioner Powell said the budget request seemed small. She said this was a first-order 
obligation. She said that what was needed could not be done unless there was more investment in 
Medic. She said that she supported the funding.   
 
 
Commissioner Leake asked who to call if she had a fire.  Mr. Peterson said she would call 911, and 
they would ask if she needed fire or medic, and then be dispatched. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said the funding model needed to be revisited.  She said service 
levels in those zip codes need to be measured.  She asked if they measured the customer service 
levels and if there was cultural bias training.  Mr. Peterson said they did have that and had a third-
party vendor who did the customer service surveys.  Commissioner Townsend-Ingram requested to 
see the surveys.    
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarity regarding the subsidy.  County Manager Diorio 
said municipal taxes were already funding this service because it's part of what their fire 
department did, She said when they funded their fire department, they were funding first 
responder services as a part of that.  She said they wanted Mecklenburg County to pay for that 
service when the residents were already paying for it.   
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said the County had to bring equity to all the people within the 
County.   County Manager Diorio said they were getting equity and were part of the State EMS Plan. 
 Mr. Peterson said the state EMS plan governed how EMS worked in Mecklenburg County.  He said 
all the fire departments were in that plan because all of them opted in to provide first responder 
services in the County.  He said they were already funding it and already doing that.  He said they 
were required to keep a roster and operate under the medical control protocol that were created by 
the medical director and the medical control board.  County Manager Diorio said there was no issue 
with equity because they were already providing the service and paying for it. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked how Mecklenburg County compared in response times to other 
counties i.e. Wake or Gilford.  He asked if there was anticipation that response times would 
increase decrease or remain the same.  Mr. Peterson said the way Medic tracked and reported 
response times was far more sophisticated and in depth.   
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there was data.  Mr. Peterson he would have to ask for that data.  
He said if they continued to build Medic up in the next few years, they would still hit response times 
even if they separated.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked for clarification regarding cardiac arrests and the consequences if our 
partners not responding.  Mr. Peterson said if they didn’t have the firefighters responding to those 
calls, such as cardiac arrests calls, it would make an impact on patient care, and they would not be 
able to have that level of cardiac arrest survival. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

50 

 

Chair Jerrell asked about the frequency of meetings between the fire department and the towns 
and when the next meeting was. Mr. Peterson said the Charlotte Fire Department had an MOU in 
place until July, and they met twice a month.   
 
Chair Jerrell asked if the meetings have closed the gaps.  Mr. Peterson said they identified the 
common things that were important and were working on solutions. 
 
Chair Jerrell said the towns had different positions than the County Manager and needed to 
understand where the disconnect was. He said that without hearing the counterpoints, it was hard 
to assess.  He said that he needed to hear both sides to come to a conclusion. 
 
 
DEPARTMENTAL DIRECTORS’ MONTHLY REPORTS  
 
25-0217 DEPARTMENT MANAGEMENT MONTHLY REPORTS 
 
Receive as information the department directors' monthly management reports. The monthly 
management reports can be accessed online via public dashboards at:  

 
https://meck.co/DataDashboard 

 
Background:   The County Manager has requested department directors develop department 
management monthly reports highlighting key activities and initiatives within the departments and 
that reports show relevant performance indicators of departmental activity.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
STAFF REPORTS & REQUESTS – NONE 
 
 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REPORTS & REQUESTS – NONE 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

51 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 
 

Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Powell, and 
unanimously carried, to approve the following item(s):  
 

 
25-0203 STORM WATER PROGRAM – HAZARD MITIGATION CATAWBA RIVER 

FLOODPLAIN 
 

Accept the Offer of Sale of Real Estate from Randy and Nancy McPherson, owners of property 

located at 1104 Riverside Drive, Charlotte, NC (tax parcel 031-152-22), for $359,820. 

Accept the Offer of Sale of Real Estate from Terry Moore and Eloise Richardson, owners of property 

located at 1213 Riverside Drive, Charlotte, NC (tax parcel 031-161-04), for $483,504. 

Accept the Offer of Sale of Real Estate from Richard and Darlene Lengel, owners of property located 

at 1223 Riverside Drive, Charlotte, NC (tax parcel 031-161-06), for $400,625. 

Accept the Offer of Sale of Real Estate from Martha Hubbard, owner of property located at 1341 

Riverside Drive, Charlotte, NC (tax parcel 031-161-14), for $484,236. 

Accept the Offer of Sale of Real Estate from Mark Davis and Anna Hubbard, owners of property 

located at 1501 Riverside Drive, Charlotte, NC (tax parcel 031-471-12), for $165,000. 

Authorize the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Police and Fire Departments to use the structures for training 

exercises. 

Background:  Since late 1999, Mecklenburg County has used storm water fee revenue to mitigate 
flood prone property.  Buyouts reduce the risk to life and property during floods, while also 
enhancing the natural and beneficial functions of the floodplain.  Mecklenburg County uses the land 
as open space, to expand greenways, to construct wetlands, etc. 
 
At the November 6, 2024, Mecklenburg Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) meeting, the BOCC 
adopted the MECKLENBURG COUNTY RESOLUTION ADOPTING GUIDELINES FOR A VOLUNTARY 
BUYOUT AND RETROFIT GRANT PROGRAM FOR FLOODPLAIN STRUCTURES THAT SUSTAINED FLOOD 
DAMAGE FROM TROPICAL STORM HELENE ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2024, OR AFTER.  The resolution set 
out guidelines for use of the Storm Water Capital Reserve for voluntary buyouts and retroFIT grants 
for floodplain structures that sustained flood damage from Tropical Storm Helene. These properties 
are selected for possible acquisition using criteria listed in the adopted Resolution. 
 
The requested actions will consist of acquiring the properties and demolishing the existing homes. 
The purchase price is based upon the pre-flood Fair Market Value (FMV) minus documented flood 
damages from the September 2024 event. The owners have voluntarily agreed to sell to the County 
for the FMV minus Actual Cash Value (ACV) of insured structural losses (from owner’s flood 
insurance claim) per the November 6, 2024, resolution and as outlined in the table below: 
 
 

Address Pre-Storm FMV ACV of Losses Final Offer Price 

1104 Riverside Dr $618,000 $258,180 $359,820 

1213 Riverside Dr $607,000 $123,496 $483,504 

1223 Riverside Dr $536,000 $135,375 $400,625 

1341 Riverside Dr $675,000 $190,764 $484,236 

1501 Riverside Dr $374,000 $209,000 $165,000 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

52 

 

Storm Water Services staff allows the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Police Department and the City of 
Charlotte Fire Department training opportunities for police and fire personnel prior to demolition of 
flood prone buildings.   
 
 
25-0209 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BRIAR CREEK GREENWAY, PHASE 1, MONROE 

ROAD TO BAY STREET 
 
Award a construction contract to Blythe Development, LLC, in the amount of $1,697,251.16. 
 
Background:  This contract is for the construction of the Briar Creek Greenway Phase 1 from Monroe 
Road to Bay Street. This project includes 2,323 LF (0.44 miles) of new greenway trail, a 
prefabricated pedestrian bridge, and a parking lot/trailhead. The anticipated construction period 
will be approximately 365 calendar days. 
 
 
25-0212 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE 
 
Adopt Resolution authorizing Interlocal Agreement for funding of the Reedy Creek at Hood Road 

Project. 

Authorize the County Manager to negotiate and execute a funding agreement with the City of 

Charlotte. 

Receive and appropriate up to $5,700,000 the City of Charlotte for its share of the Reedy Creek at 

Hood Road Project. 

Background:  This is a funding agreement between the City of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County 
for the funding of a joint water quality project on Reedy Creek and its minor system  
 
tributaries. The County intends to construct approximately 12,000 linear feet of stream restoration 
on Reedy Creek from Hood Road to Interstate 485. The City of Charlotte intends to restore 
approximately 8,000 linear feet of stream on the minor system tributaries within the Reedy Creek 
project area. The interlocal funding agreement includes compensation to the County from the City 
for County staff administration and the City portion of design and construction in the amount not to 
exceed $5,700,000.  
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

53 

 

 
Resolution recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #20. 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

54 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

55 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

56 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

57 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

58 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

59 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

60 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

61 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

62 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

63 

 

 
Agreement recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #19. 

 

25-0218 MINUTES 
 
Approve the following Meeting Minutes: 
  
 February 25, 2025, Budget/Public Policy Workshop 
 April 1, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
 
25-0228 BUDGET AMENDMENT – DEPARTMENT OF CHILD, FAMILY, AND ADULT  

SERVICES 
 
Amend the 2024-2025 Annual Budget Ordinance to recognize, receive, and appropriate an increase 
in federal revenue and expenses in the amount of $233,854 from the North Carolina Department of 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

64 

 

Health and Human Services, Division of Social Services to the General Fund (0001) in the 
Department of Child, Family, and Adult Services. 
 
Background:  The North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Social 
Services allocates funding to Mecklenburg County for childcare. The 2025 fiscal year funding was 
increased in the amount of $233,854 totaling $2,699,507 for Non-Smart Start administrative 
support services. Mecklenburg County contracts with Child Care Resources, Inc. (CCRI) which works 
with families and communities to ensure that all children have access to high quality, affordable 
early learning and school-age opportunities and experiences that enable them to succeed in school 
and in life. 
 
 
25-0231 EMPLOYEE WELLNESS SNACK BOXES 
 
Approve the selected vendor Smart Box to provide snack boxes to employees for the calendar year 
2025. 
 
Background:  In March of 2025, HR collaborated with Procurement to conduct an Invitation to Bid 
for the employee wellness snack box program.  ITB #487-PW-HRS006001 was posted on March 7, 
and on March 27, Human Resources received three bids during a Public Bid Opening.  The bidders 
are Prosperity Kitchen, SmartBox and Seasoned Provisions.  
Upon review of the bids and sample snack boxes, the evaluation team determined the following: 
 1.) Seasoned Provisions was within budget but not fully responsive to the request. 
 2.) SmartBox was within budget and was fully responsive to the request. 
 3.) Prosperity Kitchen was responsive to the request but was not within budget.  
 
 
T H I S   C O N C L U D E D   I T E M S   A P P R O V E D   B Y   C O N S E N T 
 ____________________ 
 
 
25-0215 PULLED CONSENT ITEMS 
 
Commissioners may remove agenda items from the Consent Agenda for a separate vote, to bring 
public awareness or to make comments. The following items are pulled and voted upon separately: 
 
 
25-0202 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF CHARLOTTE 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, to adopt Resolution authorizing Interlocal Agreement for funding of Kings Branch Stream 
and Sewer Project at Archdale Drive; authorize the County Manager to negotiate and execute a 
funding agreement with the City of Charlotte; receive and appropriate up to $500,000 from the City 
of Charlotte for its share of Kings Branch Stream and Sewer Project. 
 
Background:  This is a funding agreement between the City of Charlotte and Mecklenburg County 
for the funding of a portion of the joint project on Kings Branch located between Archdale Drive and 
Arrowood Road. The County intends to relocate approximately 2,000 feet of sanitary sewer pipe to 
facilitate stream restoration. The City of Charlotte wishes to add up to $500,000 in betterments to 
extend the relocated sewer to their existing upstream facilities.  
 
The proposed stream project has dual goals of reducing flood risk and improving water quality 
within the project Area. The project goals are to restore approximately 6,000 linear feet of stream 
and bring six multi-family apartment buildings into compliance with the floodplain regulations by 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

65 

 

reducing base flood elevations. It is necessary for the County to relocate the sewer line to achieve 
both goals. 
 
This item was pulled by Commissioner Leake for clarity and/or public awareness. 
 

 
 
Resolution recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #17. 

 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

66 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

67 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

68 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

69 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

70 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

71 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

72 

 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

73 

 

 
Agreement recorded in full in Ordinance Book 54, Document #16. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

74 

 

 
25-0205 AMEND THE COUNTY’S MAJOR SYSTEM COMPONENT OF THE STORM WATER FEE 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Powell, and unanimously 
carried, to schedule a public hearing for May 6, 2025, for the Major System component of the 
Storm Water Fee. 
 
Background:  In 1994, the County implemented a Storm Water fee to fund the administration of 
storm water management programs to improve water quality, reduce flood losses and 
repair/maintain the storm drainage system.  
 
By interlocal agreements among Mecklenburg County, the City of Charlotte, and the Towns, the 
storm water fee has three components. The purpose of this Board Action is to set a public hearing 
for May 6, 2025, to receive public comments regarding the County’s Major System component of 
the Storm Water fee. The City of Charlotte and the Town of Matthews Are considering altering their 
components of the fee that is charged within their jurisdictions. Those requests will be addressed 
separately in the budget process. 
 
Major System Component (Countywide):  The major system of the storm water system is defined as 
large creeks and rivers (examples: Little Sugar Creek, McDowell Creek, West Branch Rocky River, 
Catawba River, etc.) that drain more than 1 squAre mile and is the responsibility of the County 
throughout the County. The additional revenue will be used to expand County Storm Water’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) consistent with the Environmental Leadership Action Plan (ELAP).  
 
The proposed fees for the Major System Component Are as follows: 
Tier I: $1.21 to $1.36, per month 
Tier II: $1.84 to $2.07, per month 
Tier III: $2.81 to $3.16, per month 
Tier IV: $5.23 to $5.88, per month 
Commercial: $32.32 to $36.36, per acre of impervious acre 
 
MCSWS requests a public hearing be set in accordance with the Storm Water Management 
Interlocal Agreement and State law for considering such increases. 
 
On March 20, 2025, the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Storm Water Advisory Committee unanimously 
endorsed the County’s FY2026 Operating and Capital budgets (including the above fee increases) 
and forwarded its recommendations to the County Manager and the Board of County 
Commissioners.  
 
This item was pulled by Commissioner Leake for clarity and/or public awareness. 

 
 
25-0207 TAX REFUNDS 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell, seconded by Commissioner Meier, and 
unanimously carried, to approve refunds in the amount of $7,212.29 for registered motor vehicles 
as statutorily required to be paid as requested by the County Assessor; and approve refunds in the 
amount of $77,065.88 as statutorily required to be paid as requested by the County Assessor. 
 
Background:   This Board action is necessary to approve registered motor vehicle tax refunds 
resulting from clerical errors, value changes and appeals processed in the statewide vehicle tax 
system. 
  
This Board action is necessary to approve tax refunds resulting from clerical errors, audits and other 

amendments, including revaluation appeals. There is accrued interest of $2,518.29 to be added to 



Meeting Minutes 

April 15, 2025 

75 

 

refunds of $43,915.73. There is no accrued interest to be added to the refunds of $30,631.86. The 

total refunds with interest added is $77,065.88. 

This item was pulled by Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell for clarity and/or public awareness. 

 
 
25-0210  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Altman, and unanimously 
carried, to award a construction contract to J. D. Goodrum Co., Inc. in the amount of 
$11,562,903.27. 
 
Background:  This contract is for the construction of Sugar Creek Greenway in Charlotte from 
McDowell Farms Drive to Yorkmont Road. This project includes over 2.5 miles of new greenway trail, 
three pedestrian bridge crossings, 10 neighborhood connections, and a parking lot/trailhead.  The 
anticipated construction period will be approximately 560 days. 
 
This item was pulled by Commissioner Leake for clarity and/or public awareness. 

 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
25-0216 COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
The Board received information from the Board of County Commissioners. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Meier, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and unanimously 
carried, that there being no further business to come before the Board that the meeting be 
adjourned at 9:36 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

          
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board                                             Mark Jerrell, Chair 


